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NZF MONEY LIMITED

(Pursuant to Section 37A(1A) Securities Act 1978)
(“Act”)

We Mark Hume Thornton and Craig Irving Alexander as directors of NZF Money Limited
(“Company”) hereby certify that, in the opinion of all directors of the Company after due
enquiry by them:

1. The financial position of the Company as shown in the statements of financial
position to 31 March 2010 as contained in the current registered prospectus dated 23
September 2010 as amended by memorandum of amendments dated 29 November
2010 (“Prospectus”) has not materially and adversely changed during the period from
the date of the statements of financial position to the date of this certificate;

2. The Prospectus is not, at the date of this certificate, false or misleading in a material
particular by reason of failing to refer, or give proper emphasis, to adverse
circumstances.

We attach to this certificate as required by Section 37A(1A)(d) of the Act, financial

statements for the six monthly period ended 30 September 2010 completed in accordance
with the Securities Regulations 2009.
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Datedthe 2. ¢  day of December 2010
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Mark Hume Thornton

e

/>
Craig Irving Alé@
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

INTERIM REPORT
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

The Directors present the financial statements of the Company and the Group for the six month period ended 30 September 2010
and the auditors’ report thereon.

The shareholder of the Company has exercised its right under Section 211(3) of the Companies Act 1993 and agreed that this
interim report need not comply with any of the Sections (a) and (¢) to (j) of Section 211(1) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors who approved these financial statements for issue on 23 December 2010.

“dd

Craig Irving Alexan Mark Hume Thornton
Chairman Executive Director




Grant Thornton

Independent Auditor’s Report

Audit

Grant Thornton New Zealand Audit
Partnership

L4, Grant Thornton House

152 Fanshawe Street

PO Box 1961

Auckland 1140

T +64 (0)9 308 2570
F +64 (0)9 309 4892
www.grantthornton.co.nz

To the shareholder of NZF Money Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have only audited the financial statements of NZF Money Limited (the “company”) on
pages 5 to 62, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2010
and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the period then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The company’s Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand that give a true and
fair view of the matters to which they relate, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on only the company financial statements based
on our audit. We have not been engaged to express an opinion on the group financial
statements on pages 5 to 62. We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the company’s financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the company’s financial statements. The procedutes selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
company’s financial statements, whether due to fraud or etror. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
company’s financial statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they
relate in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the citcumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
controls.

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the presentation of the
company’s financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in the
company.

Opinion
In our opinion, the company’s financial statements on pages 5 to 62:

o Comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand,
¢ Comply with International Financial Reporting Standards;

o Give a true and fair view of the financial position of NZIF Money Limited as at
30 September 2010 and its statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the period ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Sections 16(1)(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial Reporting Act 1993 require us to comment
on whether we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required
from NZF Money Limited and whether we consider that appropriate accounting records
have been kept.

We have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required.

In our opinion proper accounting records have been kept by NZF Money Limited as far as
appears from an examination of those records.

Gk Thondza

Grant Thornton New Zealand Audit Partnership
Auckland, New Zealand
23 December 2010

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd



»

NZF MONEY LIMITED

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Gains on financial instruments at fair
value

Total operating income

Net impairment (losses)/gains
Operating expenses and staff costs

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax benefit/(expense)
(Loss)/profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

Net (losses)/gains on cash flow
hedges arising during the period
Income tax relating to components of
other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income for
the period, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the
period, net of tax

Note

w

& B

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

Group Company

30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months) (6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
10,662 23,499 12,294 3,103 8,614 4,828
(7,803) (17,946) (9,314) (1,975) (5,945) (3,157)
2,859 5,553 2,980 1,128 2,669 1,671
353 1,308 765 242 838 464
477) (383) (440) 10 (18) (12)
(124) 425 325 232 820 452
654 2,269 1,603 - - -
3,389 8,247 4,908 1,360 3,489 2,123
(1,919) 210 516 (1,902) 315 549
(1,535) (3,364) (1,760) (1,217) (2,861) (1,483)
(65) 5,093 3,664 (1,759) 943 1,189
17 (1,533) (1,100) 527 (284) (357)
(48) 3,560 2,564 (1,232) 659 832
(590) 713 648 - 145 74
(590) 713 648 - 145 74
(638) 4,273 3,212 (1,232) 804 906

The attached notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements



NZF MONEY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

Note

GROUP

Balance as at 1 April 2009

Total comprehensive income

Issue of ordinary shares 22
Equity dividends

Balance as at 30 September 2009 (Unaudited)

Balance as at 1 April 2009

Total comprehensive income

Issue of ordinary shares 22
Equity dividends

Balance as at 31 March 2010 (Audited)

Balance as at 1 April 2010

Total comprehensive income

Equity dividends

Balance as at 30 September 2010 (Unaudited)

COMPANY

Balance as at 1 April 2009

Total comprehensive income

Issue of ordinary shares 22
Equity dividends

Balance as at 30 September 2009 (Audited)

Balance as at 1 April 2009

Total comprehensive income

Issue of ordinary shares 22
Equity dividends

Balance as at 31 March 2010 (Audited)

Balance as at 1 April 2010

Total comprehensive income

Equity dividends

Balance as at 30 September 2010 (Audited)

Hedge
Share Retained Accounting Total
Capital Earnings Reserve Equity
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
4,574 8,260 (1,238) 11,596
- 2,564 648 3,212
500 - - 500
5,074 10,824 (590) 15,308
4,574 8,260 (1,238) 11,596
- 3,560 713 4,273
500 - - 500
5,074 11,820 (525) 16,369
5,074 11,820 (525) 16,369
- (48) (590) (638)
5,074 11,772 1,115) 15,731
4,574 8,869 (145) 13,298
- 832 74 906
500 - - 500
5,074 9,701 (71) 14,704
4,574 8,869 (145) 13,298
- 659 145 804
500 - - 500
5,074 9,528 - 14,602
5,074 9,528 - 14,602
- (1,232) - (1,232)
5,074 8,296 - 13,370

The attached notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements



NZF MONEY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Derivative assets held for risk
management

Loans and advances to customers
Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiary
Deferred tax asset

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Derivative liabilities held for risk
management

Loans and borrowings

Current tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Share capital

Retained earnings

Hedge accounting reserve
Total equity

Note

12
13
14

15
16

17
18

19

12
20

21

22

Group Company

30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2,864 12,509 5,370 1,178 12,133 4,512

- 47 - - - -
244,358 259,206 261,556 38,495 58,700 76,220
746 833 910 1,061 240 380
- - 12 1,041 487 290

116 145 192 73 92 123

- - - 1 1 1
905 924 1,041 823 850 976
2,742 2,650 2,674 897 926 1,099
251,731 276,314 271,755 43,569 73,429 83,601
1,819 2,513 1,168 480 559 644
1,441 1,552 2,394 - - 225
232,306 255,346 252,584 29,711 58,186 67,874

272 305 - - - -
162 229 301 8 82 154
236,000 259,945 256,447 30,199 58,827 68,897
15,731 16,369 15,308 13,370 14,602 14,704
5,074 5,074 5,074 5,074 5,074 5,074
11,772 11,820 10,824 8,296 9,528 9,701
(1,115) (525) (590) - - (71)
15,731 16,369 15,308 13,370 14,602 14,704

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors who approved these financial statements for issue on 23 December 2010.

i

Craig Irving Alexander
Chairman

Mark Hume Thornton
Executive Director

The attached notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

Note

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Interest received

Interest paid

Fee and commission income received
Payments to suppliers and employees
Taxation received/(paid)

Net decrease/(increase) in loans and
advances to customers 1(t)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flows used in Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and

equipment 15
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net (decrease)/increase in term loans 1(t)

Net increase in secured notes 1(t)
Net increase in secured subordinated

notes 1(®)
Net (decrease)/increase in related party

loans 1(t)
Net (decrease)/increase in secured

debenture stock 1(t)
Issue of share capital 22

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash held

Cash balance at start of the period

Cash balance at end of the period

Made up as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company

30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months) (6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
16,339 22,753 11,776 2,772 7,872 4,256
(7,699) (17,840) (9,233) (2,009) (5,892) (3,126)
316 1,250 719 198 771 408
(2,078) (4,740) (2,533) (1,224) (3,023) (1,582)
3 (158) (159) - 173 171
13,309 (4,349) (6,634) 18,683 22,136 4,609
14,190 (3,084) (6,064) 18,420 22,037 4,736

- (26) (26) - (26) (25)

- (26) (26) - (26) (25)
(87,910) 5,700 3,250 - (15,000) (5,000)
93,345 - - - - -

- 1,460 1,460 - - -
(795) 1,769 372 (900) - )]
(28,475) 1,194 882 (28,475) 1,194 882
- 500 500 - 500 500
(23,835) 10,623 6,464 (29,375) (13,306) (3,627)
(9,645) 7,513 374 (10,955) 8,705 1,084
12,509 4,996 4,996 12,133 3,428 3,428
2,864 12,509 5,370 1,178 12,133 4,512
2,864 12,509 5,370 1,178 12,133 4,512

The attached notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements



* NZF MONEY LIMITED

RECONCILIATION OF NET (LOSS)/ PROFIT WITH CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009

(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months) (6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(Loss)/profit for the period (48) 3,560 2,564 (1,232) 659 832
Adad:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 29 94 47 19 63 31
Decrease in collective and specific
loan impairment allowances (654) (1,584) (1,187) (654) (1,584) (1,187)
Bad debts written off 2,193 534 72 2,176 429 39
Deduct:
Net decrease/(increase) in loans and
advances to customers 1(t) 13,309 (4,349) (6,634) 18,683 22,136 4,609
Net increase in derivative assets and
liabilities held for risk management 1(t) (654) (2,553) (1,729) - (281) (127)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts
receivable and other assets (5) (66) (163) 108 356 52
Increase/(decrease) in accounts
payable and other liabilities 34 (95) 25 (153) (198) 42)
(Increase)/decrease in current tax
assets and liabilities 33) 439 122 (554) 25) 173
Decrease in deferred tax asset 19 936 819 27 482 356
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 14,190 (3,084) (6,064) 18,420 22,037 4,736

Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the six month period ended 30 September 2010, $380,000 (31 March 2010: $840,000; 30 September 2009: $599,000) of
interest was accrued on impaired loans and advances, as required by NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, in order to recognise the discount applied using the effective interest rate method to future cash receipts expected
on those loans and advances (see Note 13).

The attached notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements



NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) General Information

The reporting entity is NZF Money Limited (the “Company™). It is profit oriented and incorporated and domiciled in New
Zealand. The Group comprising the Company, its subsidiary undertaking and controlled entities is a reporting entity for the
purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and its financial statements comply with that Act. The Company is an Issuer as
defined by the Securities Act 1978 and the Securities Regulations 2009 and under its Trust Deed is required to have an audit
every six months. The Group however is not an Issuer as defined by the Securities Act 1978 and the Securities Regulations
2009 and therefore does not require an audit at 30 September 2010 or 30 September 2009.

(b) Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the Group have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, as modified by the fair
value measurement of available for sale financial assets, financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss and all
derivative contracts. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The Group meets the definition of a Financial Institution under NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and is subject to
the specific additional disclosure requirements applicable to Financial Institutions defined in Appendix E of NZ IFRS 7.

The Statement of Comprehensive Income discloses the net interest income, net fee and commission income and other income in
line with the Statement of Comprehensive Income presentation used by other Financial Institutions.

The Statement of Financial Position discloses assets and liabilities in order of their liquidity in line with the Statement of
Financial Position presentation used by other Financial Institutions. Where it is not evident from the financial statement line
item, disclosure of the current/non-current split has been made in the Maturity Profile of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (see Note 25) or the relevant note.

The consolidated financial statements for the Group are presented in New Zealand dollars ($), which is the functional currency
of all entities within the Group. All financial information presented in New Zealand dollars has been rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars ($°000).

(c) Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements for the Group have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice in New Zealand ("NZ GAAP") and the requirements of the Companies Act 1993 and the Financial Reporting Act 1993.
They comply with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ("NZ IFRS") and other applicable
financial standards, as appropriate for profit-oriented entities. The consolidated financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™).

(d) Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies and disclosures adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with
those used in the interim financial statements for the six month period ended 30 September 2009 and the annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Standards and interpretations to published standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Group
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued which were not yet effective at reporting date, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policies for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are
expected to be relevant to the Group’s financial statements is provided below. Certain other standards and interpretations have
been issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

NZ IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) (effective from 1 January 2013)

This standard is part of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
standard applies to financial assets, their classification and measurement. All financial assets are required to be classified on the
basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset. Financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, particular transaction costs and measured at amortised cost or fair value. Management is still assessing the impact
of this standard on the Group.

10



NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e) Basis of Consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company, NZF Money Limited, and its subsidiary
undertaking and controlled entities as detailed in Note 16 to the financial statements, using the purchase method of accounting.

Subsidiary undertakings are entities controlled, either directly or indirectly, by the Company. All material transactions between
subsidiary undertakings and the Company are eliminated on consolidation. The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income from the date of acquisition or
to the date of disposal.

(f) Segment Reporting
For management purposes, the Group is organised into two operating segments, as follows:
Property Finance Division

The Property Finance Division is operated by NZF Money Limited, which provides property finance to a range of clients for
residential properties (owner occupied houses), investment properties (houses), commercial and industrial properties, property
development (houses and quality apartments), rural and farm properties and bare land (residential development land), which is
predominantly backed by first mortgage security.

NZF Money Limited also provides secured business and personal loans to some of its clients and employees. However, this
does not form a significant part of the Company’s activities and is therefore not managed and measured separately from its main
Property Finance activities. As a result, all financial information relating to NZF Money Limited has been disclosed within
Property Finance activities.

Home Loans Division

The Home Loans Division comprises NZF Homeloans Limited, NZF Mortgages Warehouse A Trust, NZF Mortgages
Warehouse B Trust and NZF Mortgages 2010-1 Trust. The principal activity of the Home Loans Division is to provide
residential mortgage customers with bank competitive Home Loans, which are secured by first mortgage security.

Management monitors the results of its two operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss. Income taxes are
managed by operating segment due to the number of separate legal and tax entities involved.

All business activities are carried out within New Zealand so there is no geographic segment reporting to management.
(2) Revenue

Recognition of income
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest income and similar expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income and expense is recorded at the effective interest rate,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument, or a shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation
takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest rate, but not
future credit losses. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original effective interest rate and the change in
carrying amount is recorded as interest income or expense.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest
income continues to be recognised using the original effective interest rate applied to the new carrying amount.

The Group recognises interest revenue and establishment fees on an accruals basis when the services are rendered using the
effective interest rate method.

11



NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(g) Revenue (continued)

Fee and commission income
"The Group earns fee income from a range of services it provides to customers. Fee income can be divided into the following
categories:

Lending/Establishment fees

Fees and direct costs relating to loan origination, financing or restructuring and to loan commitments are deferred and amortised
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the life of the loan using the effective interest method. Lending fees not
directly related to the origination of a loan are recognised over the period of service.

Commissions and other fees

When commissions or fees relate to specific transactions or events, they are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income when the service is provided to the customer. When they are charged for services provided over a period, they are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis as the service is provided.

Other income
Other income comprises dividend income and other sundry income. Dividend income is recorded in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income when the right to receive the dividend is established.

(h) Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are classified in one of the following categories at initial recognition: Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss, Held to Maturity Investments, Loans and Receivables, Available for Sale Financial Assets, Financial
Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss and Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost. Furthermore, financial
instruments are split between derivative and non-derivative financial instruments.

Financial instruments are transacted on a commercial basis to derive an interest yield/cost with terms and conditions having due
regard to the nature of the transaction and the risks involved.

Some of these categories require measurement at fair value. Where available, quoted market prices are used as a measure of fair
value. Bid prices are used to estimate fair values of assets, whereas offer prices are applied to liabilities. Where quoted market
prices do not exist, fair values are estimated using present value or other market accepted valuation techniques, using methods
and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing as at the reporting date.

Where the Group has assets and liabilities with offsetting market risk, it uses mid-market prices as a basis for establishing fair
values for the offsetting risk positions and applies a bid/offer spread adjustment to the net open position as appropriate.

If changes in these assumptions to a reasonably possible alternative would result in a significantly different fair value this has
been disclosed with a range of possibilities.

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Assets and liabilities in this category are either held for trading or are managed with other assets and liabilities and are accounted
for and evaluated on a fair value basis. Fair value reporting of these assets and liabilities reflects the Group’s risk management
process, which includes utilising natural offsets where possible and managing overall risks of the portfolio on a trading basis.
Upon initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when incurred.
Assets and liabilities in this category are subsequently measured at fair value, with any changes recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Assets and liabilities in this category include derivative financial instruments to hedge the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks
arising from financing and investment activities using interest rate swaps as detailed in the Derivative Financial Instruments and
Hedge Accounting note below.

Held to Maturity Investments

Assets in this category are recorded upon initial recognition at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment.

12



NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial Instruments (continued)
Loans and Receivables

These assets are recorded upon initial recognition at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment. This category of Financial Asset includes:

Loans and advances to customers
These are recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment.

Trade and other receivables
These include accounts receivable, accrued interest on loans and advances to customers, and amounts due from group
undertakings, less impairment.

Available for Sale Financial Assets

Auvailable for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this category or do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets. Assets in this category include cash and cash equivalents that
comprise cash balances and call deposits. Assets in this category are measured upon initial recognition at fair value plus
transaction costs directly attributable to their acquisition. Subsequently such assets are measured at fair value excluding
transaction costs.

Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

This category includes all financial liabilities other than those at Fair Value through Profit or Loss. Liabilities in this category
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method and include:

Loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs
associated with the borrowing. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Other liabilities

These are recorded at amortised cost. They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
the financial period that are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments. These amounts are
unsecured.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risks arising from financing and investment
activities using interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is executed, and are subsequently re-measured
to their fair value at each reporting date. The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting
the future cash flows using the yield curve at reporting date derived from quoted interest rates. All derivatives are carried as
assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge will be recognised directly in
equity to the extent that the hedge is effective. To the extent that the hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value will be
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, then hedge accounting will be discontinued. The cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity will remain there until the forecast transaction occurs. When the hedged item is a non-financial
asset, the amount recognised in equity will be transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when it is recognised. In other
cases the amount recognised in equity will be transferred to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the same period that the
hedged item affects profit or loss.
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Share Capital

Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement

Ttems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. In the event that settlement of all or part of
the purchase consideration is deferred, cost is determined by discounting the amounts payable in the future to their present value
as at the date of acquisition.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment. When
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on computers and software, and office furniture and equipment. Depreciation is recognised in the

Statement of Comprehensive Income to write off the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, less any residual value,
over its expected useful life, at the following rates:

Computers and Software 14.4% - 48% Diminishing Value
Office Furniture and Equipment 11.4% - 50% Diminishing Value
Motor Vehicles 36% Diminishing Value

The useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually and the depreciation recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income calculated on a straight line basis would not be materially different from the depreciation recognised using the above
rates as allowed by the Income Tax Act 2004.
(k) Investment in Subsidiary Undertaking

Investment in subsidiary undertaking is held in the Company’s financial statements at cost. The carrying amount of the
investment is reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is any evidence of impairment.

() Intangible Assets
Software development
The costs of purchasing and developing sofiware for use by the Group are capitalised. Once the software development is

complete and in use it will be amortised over its useful economic life. Until the software is in use the Group tests it annually for
impairment.
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(I) Intangible Assets (continued)

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have indefinite useful lives, are measured at cost and not
amortised, but tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the other intangible assets may be
impaired, any impairment is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a
straight line basis from the date that they are available for use.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income when incurred.

(m) Leased Assets

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Other leases are operating leases and are not recognised on the Group’s Statement of Financial Position. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

(n) Asset Quality

Past Due Assets

An asset is Past Due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. A 90 Day Past Due Asset is any
asset which has not been operated by the counterparty within its key terms for at least 90 days and which is not a restructured
asset, other individually impaired asset, or a financial asset acquired through the enforcement of security.

Impaired Assets

Impaired assets consist of restructured assets, assets acquired through the enforcement of security and other impaired assets.

“Restructured asset” means any credit exposure for which:

a) the original terms have been changed to grant the counterparty a concession that would not otherwise have been
available, due to the counterparty’s difficulties in complying with the original terms; and

b) the revised terms of the facility are not comparable with the terms of new facilities with comparable risks; and

c) the yield on the asset following restructuring is equal to, or greater than, the Group’s average cost of funds, or that a

loss is not otherwise expected to be incurred.

Assets acquired through the enforcement of security are those assets (primarily real estate) which are legally owned as a result of
the enforcement of security.

Other impaired assets refers to any credit exposure for which an impairment loss is recognised in accordance with NZ IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{0) Impairment
Impairment of Loans and Advances

Losses for impaired loans and advances are recognised immediately when there is objective evidence that impairment of a loan
or portfolio of loans has occurred. A loan is considered impaired when management determines that it is probable that all
amounts owing in accordance with the terms of the original contract will not be collected. When a loan has been identified as
impaired, the carrying amount of the loan is decreased by recording specific allowances for the loss to reduce the loan to its
estimated recoverable amount, which is the present value of expected future cash flows including amounts recoverable from
guarantees and collateral, discounted at the original effective interest rate of the loan.

Impairment losses are calculated on individually significant loans and loans assessed collectively. Losses expected from future
events no matter how likely, are not recognised.

Individually significant loans

At each reporting date, the Group reviews individually significant loans for evidence of impairment. All relevant information,
including the economic situation, solvency of the customer/guarantor, enforceability of guarantees, current security values and
the time value of future cash flows are taken into account in determining individual impairment allowances.

Collectively assessed loans

At each reporting date, loans that have been individually assessed but no objective evidence of impairment existed and loans that
are not considered individually significant are pooled in similar credit risk groups. These groups are then assessed for
impairment based on historical loss experience of assets with similar risk characteristics. The historical loss experience is then
adjusted for the impact of current observable data.

Management regularly reviews and adjusts the methodology and assumptions for impairment testing as improved analysis
becomes available to minimise any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Loan write offs
Loans are normally written off, either partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery of these amounts and, for
collateralised loans, when the proceeds from realising the security has been received.

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

The recoverable amount of the Group’s trade and other receivables carried at amortised cost is calculated on an undiscounted
basis due to their short term nature. At each reporting date, the Group reviews individually significant trade and other
receivables for evidence of impairment. For trade and other receivables which are not significant on an individual basis,
collective impairment is assessed on a portfolio basis based on numbers of days overdue, and taking into account the historical
loss experience in portfolios with a similar amount of days overdue.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible assets
that are not yet available for use, recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.

The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in finance costs. If economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can be reliably measured.

(q) Expense Recognition

All expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis.
(r) Employee Benefits

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided.

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised as an employee expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when they are due.

(s) Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised
for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

In principle deferred tax liabilities are recognised from taxable temporary timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities.
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(t) Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using the direct approach. The following are the definitions used in the
Statement of Cash Flows:

Cash and cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Operating activities are the principal revenue-producing activities of the Group and other activities that are not investing or
financing activities.

Investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not included in cash and cash
equivalents.

Financing activities are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and borrowings of
the Group.

In accordance with paragraph 24 of NZ IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, cash receipts and payments shown under the following
headings in the Statement of Cash Flows have been disclosed on a net basis:

(a) Net decrease/(increase) in loans and advances to customers;

(b) Net increase in derivative assets and liabilities held for risk management;
(c) Net (decrease)/increase in term loans;

(d) Net increase in secured notes;

(e) Net increase in secured subordinated notes.

(f) Net (decrease)/increase in related party loans;

(g) Net (decrease)/increase in secured debenture stock.

The Group manages its ongoing day to day lending, cash flow and funding requirements on a net basis and believes that the
disclosure of cash receipts and payments on a net basis for the above items provides users of the financial statements with a
better understanding on how the Group has managed its cash flows during the period. In addition, the Group’s Term Loan
facilities typically roll over on a monthly basis and in the Directors’ view disclosure of the gross amounts of these rollovers
would provide no additional insight to the users of the financial statements.

2 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS, the application of which often requires
judgements to be made by management when formulating the Group’s financial position and results. Under NZ IFRS, the
Directors are required to adopt those accounting policies most appropriate to the Group’s circumstances for the purpose of
presenting fairly the Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

In determining and applying accounting policies, judgement is often required in respect of items where the choice of specific
policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the reported results or net asset position of the
Group should it later be determined that a different choice would be more appropriate.

Management considers the accounting estimates and assumptions discussed below to be its critical accounting estimates and,
accordingly, provides an explanation of each below.

The discussion below should also be read in conjunction with the Group’s disclosure of significant NZ IFRS accounting policies,
which is provided in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, “Significant Accounting Policies”.

Management has discussed its critical accounting estimates and associated disclosures with the Company’s Audit & Risk
Committee.
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

2 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment losses on loans and advances

An impairment allowance is established if there is objective evidence that a loan is impaired. A loan is considered impaired
when management determines that it is probable that all amounts due according to the original contractual terms will not be
collected. When a loan has been identified as impaired, the carrying amount of the loan is decreased by recording specific
allowances for the loss to reduce the loan to its estimated recoverable amount, which is the present value of expected future cash
flows including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted at the original effective interest rate of the loan.

There are two methods used in assessing loans for impairment, including specific loan assessment and collective loan
assessment. At each reporting date the Group reviews individually significant loans for evidence of impairment. All relevant
information, including the economic situation, solvency of the customer/guarantor, enforceability of guarantees, current security
values and the time value of future cash flows are taken into account in determining individual allowances.

At each reporting date loans that have been individually assessed but no objective evidence of impairment existed and loans that
are not considered individually significant are pooled in similar credit risk groups. These groups are then assessed for
impairment based on historical loss experience of assets with similar risk characteristics. The historical loss experience is then
adjusted for the impact of current observable data.

Management regularly reviews and adjusts the methodology and assumptions for impairment testing as improved analysis
becomes available to minimise any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curve
at reporting date derived from quoted interest rates. The carrying amounts of loans and advances net of impairment allowances
are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest for similar financial instruments.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable profits
will be available in the future, against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. Recognition, therefore,
involves judgement regarding the future financial performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred
tax asset has been recognised.

At 30 September 2010, NZF Money Limited and NZF Mortgages Warehouse B Trust had unrelieved income tax losses carried
forward of $524,000 (31 March 2010: $nil; 30 September 2009: $nil) and $256,000 (31 March 2010: $233,000; 30 September
2009: $209,000) respectively. Management believes that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be made available by these
separate legal entities in the future and has accordingly accounted for a deferred tax asset of $233,000 relating to these
unrelieved income tax losses as at 30 September 2010 (31 March 2010: $70,000; 30 September 2009: $63,000).
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

3 NET INTEREST INCOME

Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months) (6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Interest income
Loans and advances 10,075 22,393 11,618 2,543 7,599 4,172
Impaired loans and advances 380 915 606 380 841 599
Interest from Available for Sale
Financial Assets: Cash and short term
investments 207 191 70 180 174 57
Total interest income 10,662 23,499 12,294 3,103 8,614 4,828
Interest expense
Term loans 4,311 12,953 6,774 - 1,147 678
Secured notes 1,408 - - - - -
Secured subordinated notes 81 144 61 - - -
Secured debenture stock 1,934 4,680 2,418 1,934 4,680 2,418
Related party loans 28 51 - - - -
Other similar charges 41 118 61 41 118 61
Total interest expense 7,803 17,946 9,314 1,975 5,945 3,157
Net interest income 2,859 5,553 2,980 1,128 2,669 1,671
4 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months) (6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fee and commission income
Lending and credit related fee income 353 1,308 765 242 838 464
Total fee and commission income 353 1,308 765 242 838 464
Fee and commission expense
Brokerage fees 477 883 440 10 18 12
Total fee and commission expense 477 883 440 10 18 12
Net fee and commission income (124) 425 325 232 820 452
5 GAINS ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months) (6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gains on interest rate swaps held for
risk management purposes 654 2,269 1,603 - - -
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

6 NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES/(GAINS)

Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months) (6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Movement in collective loan
allowance 13 (109) (88) (22) (109) (88) 22)
Movement in specific loan allowance 13 (165) (656) (566) (165) (656) (566)
Bad debts written off 26 2,193 534 72 2,176 429 39
1,919 (210) (516) 1,902 (315) (549)
7 OPERATING EXPENSES AND STAFF COSTS
Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months) (6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(Loss)/profit before income tax
includes the following expenses:
Executive Directors’ remuneration 211 405 203 211 405 203
Auditor's remuneration 8 79 129 70 46 96 51
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 15 29 94 47 19 63 31
Leasing and rental costs 43 82 37 43 82 37
Personnel costs 742 1,465 780 590 1,188 638
Administrative expenses 431 1,189 623 308 1,027 523
1,535 3,364 1,760 1,217 2,861 1,483
Key management compensation
included in the above:
Short-term employee benefits 528 931 539 528 931 539

There were no post-employment benefits, other long-term benefits, termination benefits or share based payments made to key
management personnel during the six month period ended 30 September 2010 (31 March 2010: $nil; 30 September 2009: $nil).

8 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months) (6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
; $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts paid to the auditor for:
Audit related services 79 129 70 46 96 51
Other services - - - - - -
Total auditor's remuneration 79 129 70 46 96 51
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

9 INCOME TAX (BENEFITYEXPENSE

Income tax
Current period

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences

Income tax (benefit)/expense
reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Numerical reconciliation of income
tax (benefit)/expense to prima facie
tax payable:

(Loss)/profit before income tax
(benefit)/expense

Tax at the New Zealand tax rate of
30%

Tax amounts which are not taxable or
deductible in calculating taxable
income:

Non-deductible expenses

Note

17

Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months) (6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(36) 597 281 (554) (198) 1
19 936 819 27 482 356
17) 1,533 1,100 (527) 284 357
(65) 5,093 3,664 (1,759) 943 1,189
(20) 1,528 1,099 (528) 283 357
3 5 1 1 1 -
(17) 1,533 1,100 (527) 284 357

At 30 September 2010, NZF Money Limited and NZF Mortgages Warehouse B Trust had unrelieved income tax losses carried
forward of $524,000 (31 March 2010: $nil; 30 September 2009: $nil) and $256,000 (31 March 2010: $233,000; 30 September
2009: $209,000) respectively. Management believes that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be made available by these
separate legal entities in the future and has accordingly accounted for a deferred tax asset of $233,000 relating to these
unrelieved income tax losses as at 30 September 2010 (31 March 2010: $70,000; 30 September 2009: $63,000).

The Company is a member of a tax consolidated group that is recognised as a single tax entity for income tax purposes. Gains
and losses incurred by the Company are taken into account in calculating the taxable income of the consolidated group.
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NZF MONEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

10 IMPUTATION CREDIT ACCOUNT

The Company is a member of a tax consolidated group. The movements in the Imputation Credit Account attributable to the

Group and Company were as follows:

Group
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009

(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited

Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009

(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Audited Audited Audited

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Opening balance 6,035 6,449 6,449 6,035 6,449 6,449
Income tax (received from)/paid to IRD 3 158 159 - (173) Q171)
Other debits - (572) (572) - (241) (241)
Closing balance 6,032 6,035 6,036 6,035 6,035 6,037

11 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following information has been prepared on a consistent basis for all three accounting periods in accordance with NZ IFRS

8 Operating Segments.
GROUP 30 September 2010 (6 Months) 31 March 2010 (12 Months)
Unaudited Audited
Total Property Home Total Property Home
Finance Loans Finance Loans
Division Division Division Division
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Interest income 10,662 3,103 7,559 23,499 8,614 14,885
Interest expense (7,803) (1,975) (5,828) (17,946) (5,945) (12,001)
Net interest income 2,859 1,128 1,731 5,553 2,669 2,884
Fee and commission income - 353 242 111 1,308 838 470
Fee and commission expense 477) (10) (467) (883) (18) (865)
Net fee and commission income (124) 232 (356) 425 820 (395)
Gains on financial instruments at fair value 654 - 654 2,269 ' - 2,269
Total operating income 3,389 1,360 2,029 8,247 3,489 4,758
Net impairment (losses)/gains (1,919) (1,902) 17 210 315 (105)
Depreciation and amortisation 29 (19) 10) (94) (63) 3D
Other operating expenses and staff costs (1,506) (1,198) (308) (3,270) (2,798) 472)
(Loss)/profit before income tax 65) 1,759) 1,694 5,093 943 4,150
Income tax benefit/(expense) 17 527 (510) (1,533) (284) (1,249)
(Loss)/profit for the period (48) (1,232) 1,184 3,560 659 2,901
Total assets 251,731 43,569 208,162 276,314 73,429 202,885
Total liabilities 236,000 30,199 205,801 259,945 58,827 201,118
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11 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

GROUP

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Gains on financial instruments at fair value
Total operating income

Net impairment gains/(losses)
Depreciation and amortisation

Other operating expenses and staff costs
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the period

Total assets

Total liabilities

30 September 2009 (6 Months)

Unaudited
Total Property Home
Finance Loans
Division Division
$'000 $'000 $'000
12,294 4,828 7,466
(9,314) (3,157) (6,157)
2,980 1,671 1,309
765 464 301
(440) (12) (428)
325 452 (127)
1,603 - 1,603
4,908 2,123 2,785
516 549 (33)
47 (31) (16)
(1,713) (1,452) (261)
3,664 1,189 2,475
(1,100) (357) (743)
2,564 832 1,732
271,755 83,601 188,154
256,447 68,897 187,550

There is no intersegment revenue. As a result, all revenue shown for each operating segment is that generated from external
customers. No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue during any of the accounting periods reported on.

12 DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR RISK MANAGEMENT

Derivative assets held for risk
management
Interest rate swaps

Derivative liabilities held for risk
management
Interest rate swaps

Group Company
31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
47 - - - -
1,552 2,394 - - 225

The Group uses interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of fixed rate mortgages and the

cash flow exposures on the issued variable debt.
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13 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Property Finance Division:
Loans and advances to customers

Collective loan allowance
Specific loan allowance
Total loan allowance

Net loans and advances to customers

Home Loans Division:
Loans and advances to customers

Collective loan allowance
Specific loan allowance
Total loan allowance

Net loans and advances to customers

Total:
Loans and advances to customers

Collective loan allowance
Specific loan allowance

Total loan allowance

Net loans and advances to customers

Group Company

30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
40,596 61,455 79,372 40,596 61,455 79,372
(382) (491) (557) (382) (491) (557)
(1,719) (2,264) (2,595) (1,719) (2,264) (2,595)
(2,101) (2,755) (3,152) (2,101) (2,755) (3,152)
38,495 58,700 76,220 38,495 58,700 76,220

205,863 200,506 185,336 - - -

205,863 200,506 185,336 - - -
246,459 261,961 264,708 40,596 61,455 79,372
(382) (491) (557) (382) (491) (557)
(1,719) (2,264) (2,595) (1,719) (2,264) (2,595)
(2,101) (2,755) (3,152) 2,101) (2,755) (3,152)
244,358 259,206 261,556 38,495 58,700 76,220
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13 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and advances, by class, is as follows:

Note

Collective loan allowance
Opening balance
Credit/(charge) for the period 6

Home Loans Division

Property Finance Division

Closing balance

Specific loan allowance

Opening balance

Interest accrued on impaired loans

and advances

Credit/(charge) for the period 6

Closing balance

Gross amounts of loans,

individually determined to be

impaired, before deducting the
individually assessed impairment
allowance 26

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Note

Accounts receivable
Accrued loan interest
Secured subordinated note 27
Amount owed by group undertakings
27

Group Only Company and Group
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- - - 491) (579) (579)
- - - 109 88 22
- - - (382) (491) (557)
- - - (2,264) (3.760) (3,760)
- - - 380 840 599
- - - 165 656 566
- - - (1,719) (2,264) (2,595)
- - - 4,308 11,627 15,229

Group Company

30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited  Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
139 169 229 139 169 229
607 664 677 22 71 142
- - - 900 - -
- - 4 - - 9
746 833 910 1,061 240 380

Secured Subordinated Note

On 14 September 2010, NZF Money Limited sold a selection of mortgages and loans valued at $6,225,000 to NZF Mortgages
Warehouse A Trust for the consideration of $5,325,000 in cash and a Secured Subordinated Note with a face value of $900,000,
which was issued under the terms of the Warehouse Facility Agreement with Westpac Banking Corporation.

The Secured Subordinated Note carries interest at Bank Base Rate plus 5%, is secured against the assets and undertakings of
NZF Mortgages Warehouse A Trust and is repayable at the earlier to occur of the date of three years from the Note Issue Date,
the Vesting Date or such other date as agreed between the Noteholder, the Warehouse Facility Provider, NZF Homeloans

Limited as Trust Manager, and The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited as Trustee.

The Secured Subordinated Note is also subject to an Underwrite Put Option Agreement with NZF Group Limited, the
Company’s ultimate parent undertaking, which is exercisable upon the occurrence of an Event of Defauit of the Warehouse

Facility Agreement or the exercise of acceleration rights by Westpac Banking Corporation.
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computers Office Furniture Motor Total

& Software & Equipment Vehicles
GROUP $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 April 2009 219 490 - 709
Additions 5 - 21 26
Balance at 30 September 2009 224 490 21 735
Balance at 1 April 2009 219 490 - 709
Additions 5 - 21 26
Balance at 31 March 2010 ' 224 490 21 735
Balance at 1 April 2010 224 490 21 735
Additions - - - -
Balance at 30 September 2010 224 490 21 735
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 April 2009 115 381 - 496
Depreciation charge for the period 25 19 3 47
Balance at 30 September 2009 140 400 3 543
Balance at 1 April 2009 115 381 - 496
Depreciation charge for the year 50 38 6 94
Balance at 31 March 2010 165 419 6 590
Balance at 1 April 2010 165 419 6 590
Depreciation charge for the period 14 12 3 29
Balance at 30 September 2010 179 431 9 619
Carrying amounts
At 30 September 2009 (Unaudited) 84 90 18 192
At 31 March 2010 (Audited) 59 71 15 145
At 30 September 2010 (Unaudited) 45 59 12 116
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

COMPANY

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at 1 April 2009
Additions

Balance at 30 September 2009

Balance at 1 April 2009
Additions
Balance at 31 March 2010

Balance at 1 April 2010
Additions
Balance at 30 September 2010

Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 April 2009

Depreciation charge for the period
Balance at 30 September 2009

Balance at 1 April 2009
Depreciation charge for the year
Balance at 31 March 2010

Balance at 1 April 2010
Depreciation charge for the period
Balance at 30 September 2010

Carrying amounts

At 30 September 2009 (Audited)
At 31 March 2010 (Audited)

At 30 September 2010 (Audited)

16 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

Computers Office Furniture Motor Total
& Software & Equipment Vehicles

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

219 84 - 303

4 - 21 25

223 84 21 328

219 84 - 303

5 - 21 26

224 84 21 329

224 84 21 329

224 84 21 329

115 59 - 174

25 3 3 31

140 62 3 205

115 59 - 174

50 7 6 63

165 66 6 237

165 66 6 237

14 2 3 19

179 68 9 256

83 22 18 123

59 18 15 92

45 16 12 73

The Company's investment in its subsidiary undertaking comprises shares at cost, as follows:

Subsidiary

NZF Homeloans Limited

Principal Activity

Mortgage Servicing Company

Shareholding Cost of Investment
30Sep & 30 Sep 30 Sep & 30 Sep
31 Mar 2009 31 Mar 2009
2010 2010
% % $°000 $°000
100% 100% 1 1

NZF Homeloans Limited is the Trust Manager and exercises control over the assets and undertakings of NZF Mortgages
Warehouse A Trust, NZF Mortgages Warehouse B Trust and NZF Mortgages 2010-1 Trust, as it has sole entitlement to both the
Residual Capital Interest and Residual Income Interest of all three Trusts. NZF Homeloans Limited, NZF Mortgages Warehouse
A Trust, NZF Morigages Warehouse B Trust and NZF Mortgages 2010-1 Trust comprise the Home Loans Division of the
Group. The principal activity of the Home Loans Division is to provide residential mortgage customers with bank competitive
Home Loans, which are secured by first mortgage security. NZF Homeloans Limited, NZF Mortgages Warehouse A Trust, NZF
Mortgages Warehouse B Trust and NZF Mortgages 2010-1 Trust all have annual balance dates of 31 March.
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17 DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
Nete $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
The balance comprises temporary
differences attributable to:
Collective loan impairment allowance 115 147 167 115 147 167
Specific loan impairment allowance 516 679 779 516 679 779
Income tax losses carried forward 233 70 63 156 - -
Holiday pay accruals 41 28 32 36 24 30
Net deferred tax asset 905 924 1,041 823 850 976
Movements
Opening balance 924 1,860 1,860 850 1,332 1,332
(Charged)/credited to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income 9 (19) (936) (819) 27) (482) (356)
Closing balance 905 924 1,041 823 850 976

The reduction in the corporate tax rate from 30% to 28% effective for years beginning on or after 1 April 2011 has not been
brought to account in the consolidated financial statements for the six month period ended 30 September 2010, as a number of
the timing differences are expected to reverse by 31 March 2011. Had the financial effects of the change in tax rate been
recognised at 30 September 2010, there would have been a reduction in the deferred tax asset and an increase in the income tax
expense for the Group and the Company of $60,000 and $55,000 respectively.

18 OTHER ASSETS

Group Company

30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep

2019 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Deferred brokerage fees 1,346 1,560 1,295 16 54 94

Prepaid expenses 552 246 554 37 28 180
Purchased software under

development but not yet deployed 28 844 844 825 844 844 825

2,742 2,650 2,674 897 926 1,099

Current 1,707 1,596 1,827 897 920 1,089

Non-Current _ 1,035 1,054 847 - 6 10

2,742 2,650 2,674 897 926 1,099
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accounts payable
Amount owed to group undertakings

Accrued interest
Accrued expenses

20 LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Term loans

Secured notes

Secured subordinated notes
Secured debenture stock

Note

27

Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
295 395 482 224 311 386
605 1,400 7 - - -
369 265 240 42 76 54
550 453 439 214 172 204
1,819 2,513 1,168 480 559 644
Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
105,790 193,700 191,250 - - 10,000
93,345 - - - - -
3,460 3,460 3,460 - - -
29,711 58,186 57,874 29,711 58,186 57,874
232,306 255,346 252,584 29,711 58,186 67,874
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20 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Term Loans

At 30 September 2010, the Group had the following Term Loan facilities:

30 September 2010
Unaudited
Facility Lender Maturity Interest Total Amount Amount
Date Rate Facility Drawn Undrawn
% $'000 $'000 $'000
NZF Mortgages Warehouse A Trust
Warehouse Facility Westpac 18/10/11 4.02 225,000 105,790 119,210
31 March 2010
Audited
Facility Lender Maturity Interest Total Amount Amount
Date Rate Facility Drawn Undrawn
% $'000 $'000 $'000
NZF Mortgages Warehouse A Trust '
Warehouse Facility Westpac 18/10/10 3.28 225,000 193,700 31,300
30 September 2009
Unaudited
Facility Lender Maturity Interest Total Amount Amount
Date Rate Facility Drawn Undrawn
% $'000 $'000 $'000
NZF Money Limited
Cash Advances Facility CBA 12/12/09 3.84 40,000 10,000 30,000
NZF Mortgages Warehouse A Trust
Warehouse Facility Westpac 18/10/10 3.48 225,000 181,250 43,750
265,000 191,250 73,750

The $225,000,000 Warehouse Facility between Westpac Banking Corporation, NZF Mortgages Warehouse A Trust, NZF
Homeloans Limited and NZF Group Limited, is to be used for the provision of residential mortgages as per agreed credit criteria.
Interest payable on the Warehouse Facility is set at the date of drawdown or periodic rollover of the facility. The Warehouse
Facility is secured by first registered mortgages and is due for repayment on 18 October 2011. As is usual practice, the facility
will be renegotiated in the ordinary course of business.

The $40,000,000 Cash Advances Facility between Commonwealth Bank of Australia and NZF Money Limited ranked equally

with secured debenture stockholders in terms of its security over all of the assets and undertakings of NZF Money Limited and
was repaid in full on 19 February 2010.
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20 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Secured Notes

On 15 June 2010, the Group successfully completed the launch of its inaugural $100 million Residential Mortgage Backed
Securities (RMBS) issue, the NZF Mortgages 2010-1 Trust, which was the first RMBS issue in New Zealand since late 2007.
The transaction involved the sale of $100 million of fully reinsured Residential Home Loans from NZF Mortgages Warehouse A
Trust to NZF Mortgages 2010-1 Trust and the issue of $100 million of Notes by the Trust. Details of the Notes issued by the
Trust were as follows:

30 September 2010
Unaudited

Notes Issued Note Call Maturity Issue Rating Interest Principal
Issue Date Date Amount (Standard Rate Outstanding
Date $'000 & Poor's) % $'000
Class Al Notes 15/06/10 15/09/15 17/06/41 87,800 AAA 4.89 84,579
Class A2 Notes 15/06/10 15/09/15 17/06/41 9,100 AAA 5.74 8,766
96,900 93,345
Class B Notes 15/06/10 15/09/15 17/06/41 2,500 AA- Undisclosed 2,500
Class C Notes 15/06/10 15/09/15 17/06/41 600 Unrated Undisclosed 600
' 100,000 96,445

NZF Homeloans Limited invested $3.1 million to acquire all of the Class B and Class C Notes, in order to facilitate the
transaction. The ratings assigned by Standard & Poor’s to each Note Class took into account a number of factors, including the
credit risk of the underlying Residential Home Loans sold, which further underlines the Group’s commitment to quality lending.

The $100 million of sales proceeds received by NZF Mortgages Warehouse A Trust were used to reduce the amount drawn
under the Warehouse Facility with Westpac Banking Corporation.

Secured Subordinated Notes

Under the terms of the Warehouse Facility Agreement with Westpac Banking Corporation, NZF Group Limited has provided
funding of $3,460,000 to NZF Mortgages Warehouse A Trust in the form of Secured Subordinated Notes.

The Secured Subordinated Notes are secured against the assets and undertakings of NZF Mortgages Warehouse A Trust and are
repayable at the earlier to occur of the date of termination of the Warehouse Facility Agreement or the Vesting Date or such
other date as agreed between the Trustee, the Trust Manager and the Warehouse Facility Provider.

Secured Debenture Stock

The debenture stock issued by NZF Money Limited is secured under a Debenture Stock Trust Deed between NZF Money
Limited and Covenant Trustee Company Limited as Trustee. The Deed creates a floating charge in favour of the Trustee over all
of the assets and undertakings of NZF Money Limited, but not the assets or undertakings of NZF Homeloans Limited, NZF
Mortgages Warehouse A Trust, NZF Mortgages Warehouse B Trust or NZF Mortgages 2010-1 Trust. At 30 September 2010,
liabilities totalling $166,000 (31 March 2010: $215,000; 30 September 2009: $238,000) rank in priority to secured debenture
stockholders in the event that NZF Money Limited was liquidated.
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21 OTHER LIABILITIES

Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Deferred fee income:
Current 57 97 153 8 50 110
Non-Current 105 132 148 - 32 44
162 229 301 8 82 154
22 SHARE CAPITAL
Group & Company Group & Company Group & Company
30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
No. of No. of No. of
Shares $'000 Shares $'000 Shares $'000
Issued and paid up capital:
Ordinary Shares 3,353,831 5,074 3,353,831 5,074 3,353,831 5,074

On 30 June 2009, the Company issued 500,000 Ordinary Shares to NZF Group Limited for the consideration of $500,000. No
Ordinary Shares were issued by the Company during the six month period ended 30 September 2010.

All Ordinary Shares are issued and fully paid, have no par value and have an equal right to vote, to dividends and to any surplus
on winding up. The Company does not have a total number of authorised shares. Without prejudice to any special rights
conferred on the existing Shareholders the Board may issue Shares with, or without, preferred, deferred or other special rights or
restrictions, whether in regard to distributions, voting, return of capital or otherwise.

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial
liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging);

Level 2: Quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all significant
inputs are based on observable market data and yield curve information provided by the Group’s bankers; and

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables show an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

GROUP 30 September 2010
Unaudited
Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Total Fair
Value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - 1,441 - 1,441
GROUP 31 March 2010
Audited
Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Total Fair
Value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - 47 - 47
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - 1,552 - 1,552
GROUP 30 September 2009
Unaudited
Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Total Fair
Value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - 2,394 - 2,394
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)

COMPANY 30 September 2010
Audited
Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Total Fair
Value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - - - -
COMPANY 31 March 2010
Audited
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total Fair
Value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - - - -
COMPANY 30 September 2009
Audited
Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Total Fair
Value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps ‘ - 225 - 225

Financial instruments recorded at fair value

The following is a description of the determination of fair value for financial instruments which are recorded at fair value using
valuation techniques. These incorporate the Group’s estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make when
valuing the instruments.

Derivatives

Derivative products valued using a valuation technique with market observable inputs are mainly interest rate swaps. The most
frequently applied valuation techniques include swap models, using present value calculations. The models incorporate various
inputs including the applicable interest rate yield curves derived from quoted interest rates.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not carried at fair value

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial instruments which
are not already recorded at fair value in the financial statements.

Loans and advances to customers
Each loan has particular circumstances, which determine its fair value. The carrying amounts of the loans net of impairment
allowances best represent their fair value.

Loans and borrowings

Fair value is calculated based on the present value of contractual principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate
of interest at the reporting date.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables
Due to their relatively short term nature, the carrying amounts of these items are considered to be equivalent to their fair value.

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments that are not carried at fair
vatue in the financial statements. These tables do not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities.

GROUP 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Carrying  Total Fair  Carrying  Total Fair Carrying  Total Fair
Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value
Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited Unaudited Unaudited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Available for sale assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,864 2,864 12,509 12,509 5,370 5,370
Loans and receivables:
Loans and advances to customers 244,358 244,358 259,206 259,206 261,556 261,556
Trade and other receivables 746 746 833 833 910 910
245,104 245,104 260,039 260,039 262,466 262,466
Total Financial Assets 247,968 247,968 272,548 272,548 267,836 267,836
Financial Liabilities
Amortised cost:
Loans and borrowings 232,306 232,306 255,346 255,346 252,584 252,584
Trade and other payables 1,819 1,819 2,513 2,513 1,168 1,168
234,125 234,125 257,859 257,859 253,752 253,752
Total Financial Liabilities 234,125 234,125 257,859 257,859 253,752 253,752
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not carried at fair value (continued)

COMPANY

Financial Assets
Available for sale assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and receivables:
" Loans and advances to customers
Trade and other receivables

Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Amortised cost:

Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables

Total Financial Liabilities

The Company and the Group have not classified any assets as Held to Maturity Investments.

Interest rates used for determining fair value

30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Carrying  Total Fair Carrying  Total Fair Carrying  Total Fair
Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,178 1,178 12,133 12,133 4,512 4,512
38,495 38,495 58,700 58,700 76,220 76,220
1,061 1,061 240 240 380 380
39,556 39,556 58,940 58,940 76,600 76,600
40,734 40,734 71,073 71,073 81,112 81,112
29,711 29,711 58,186 58,186 67,874 67,874
480 480 559 559 644 644
30,191 30,191 58,745 58,745 68,518 68,518
30,191 30,191 58,745 58,745 68,518 68,518

The following interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are based on the yield curve as at reporting

date plus an appropriate constant credit spread:

Loans and advances to customers

Term loans

Secured notes

Secured subordinated notes
Secured debenture stock

Financial risk management objectives

30-Sep

2010

6.10% - 15.00%

4.02%

4.89% - 5.74%
3.75% - 6.14%
4.25% - 11.00%

31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2009
5.80% - 15.00% 5.75% - 15.00%
3.28% 3.46% - 3.85%
N/A N/A
3.75% - 8.71% 3.75%

4.50% - 11.00% 4.25% -

11.00%

The Group’s management provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets,
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal risk reports which analyse
exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge these risk exposures.
The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written
principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial
instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the Board of
Directors on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial

instruments, for speculative purposes.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates. The Group enters into a variety of
derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk, including interest rate swap contracts to mitigate the
risk of changes in interest rates.

Market risk exposures are analysed by sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or
the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk management

All of the Group’s operations are carried out within New Zealand. As a result, the Group is not exposed to any direct foreign
currency exchange risks.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow and lend funds at both fixed and floating interest rates.
The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings and by the use
of interest rate swap contracts in order to maintain the Group’s lending margin on fixed rate mortgages.

Under the terms of the Warehouse Facility Agreement with Westpac Banking Corporation all fixed rate mortgages are matched
with individual interest rate swap contracts for the duration of the fixed rate loan period. As a result, all fixed rate lending is
hedged.

Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite; ensuring optimal hedging
strategies are applied, by either positioning the balance sheet or protecting interest expense through different interest rate cycles.

Interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts
calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates
on the fair value of fixed rate mortgages and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable debt. The fair value of interest rate
swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curves at reporting date and the
credit risk inherent in the contract, and is disclosed below. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the
end of the financial period.

The following tables detail the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding as at
reporting date:

GROUP

Outstanding Contracts Average Contracted Fixed Interest Rate Notional Principal Amount
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Unaudited Audited Unaudited
% % % $°000 $°000 $°000
Less than 1 year 3.98 4.10 5.55 117,691 115,548 100,413
1 to 2 years 5.58 4.57 6.03 26,103 19,556 22,807
2 to 5 years 6.92 6.52 6.54 4,784 16,551 17,699
148,578 151,655 140,919
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest rate swap contracts (continued)

GROUP
Outstanding Contracts Net Fair Value
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited
$°000 $°000 $°000
Less than 1 year (383) (566) (937)
1 to 2 years (825) (226) (670)
2 to 5 years (233) (713) (787)
(1,441) (1,505) (2,394)
COMPANY
Outstanding Contracts Average Contracted Fixed Interest Rate Notional Principal Amount
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
% % % $°000 $°000 $°000
Less than 1 year - - 8.25 - - 2,895
1 to 2 years - - 8.00 - - 1,964
2 to 5 years - - 8.14 - - 542
- - 5,401
Outstanding Contracts Net Fair Value
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009
Audited Audited Audited
$°000 $°000 $°000
Less than 1 year - - 63)
1 to 2 years - - (111)
2 to 5 years - - (51)
- - (225)

The interest rate swap contracts settle on a monthly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swap contracts is the interbank
rate of New Zealand (BKBM). The Group will settle the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and non-
derivative instruments at the reporting date. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (0.5%) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

For each interest rate movement of 50 basis points higher/lower, assuming all other variables were held constant, the Group’s

and the Company’s result for the period would decrease/increase by $261,000 (31 March 2010: $386,000; 30 September 2009:
$184,000) and $99,000 (31 March 2010: $328,000; 30 September 2009: $162,000) respectively.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
Financial instruments which potentially subject the Group to credit risk principally consist of cash and cash equivalents,
derivative assets held for risk management, loans and advances to customers, and trade and other receivables.

The Group’s cash balances, call deposits and derivative assets held for risk management are placed with major trading banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The Group performs credit evaluations on all customers
requiring loans and advances. The Group requires collateral or other security to support financial instruments with credit risk.

The Group operates a lending policy with various levels of authority depending on the size and loan to value ratio of the loan,
ensuring compliance with all Trust Deed covenants and agreed credit criteria set out in Warehouse Facility Agreements. The
Group closely monitors the performance of its borrowers, the payment of instalments under its loans, and has adopted a formal
debt management process to be followed when a loan falls into arrears.

Risk gradings categorise exposures according to the degree of risk of financial loss faced and focus management on the attendant
risks. Risk grades are used to determine where impairment allowances may be required. The current risk grading framework
consists of three grades reflecting varying degrees of risk of default and the availability of collateral or other credit risk
mitigation. They are as follows:

e Neither past due or impaired — compliance with all terms, good security value, no adverse events affecting the borrower.

e  Past due but not impaired — material compliance with all terms, no concerns over security value or future events that may
affect the borrower.

e Impaired — non-compliance with terms or evidence of impairment of security held, or adverse event affecting the borrower.

The Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal
collateral types for loans and advances to customers are:

e Mortgages over properties.

¢  General Security Agreements.

e Charges over business assets and motor vehicles.
e  Personal guarantees.

The Group also limits potential exposure to credit risk from certain Home Loan mortgage customers by fully reinsuring loan
principal amounts and 12 months cash flow cover with third party insurers. At 30 September 2010, $190,822,000 (31 March
2010: $192,471,000; 30 September 2009: $174,381,000) of the reported loans and advances to customers were fully reinsured
with third party insurers.

Maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of each financial asset in the Statement of Financial
Position which is net of any impairment allowance. Concentration of credit exposures set out in Note 24 do not take into
account the fair value of any collateral, in the event of counterparties failing to meet their contractual obligations.

Liquidity risk management

Utltimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and bank facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The tables in Note 25 detail the Group’s expected maturity for its financial assets and the remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the contractual maturities of the financial assets except where the
Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a different period and the cash ﬂows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The Group considers share capital and retained earnings to be capital for management purposes. In implementing current capital
requirements, the Debenture Stock Trust Deed entered into between NZF Money Limited and Covenant Trustee Company
Limited as Trustee, requires the Company to maintain a prescribed ratio of total liabilities to total tangible assets. The Trust

Deed prescribed ratio is 86%.

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholders’ return is also recognised and the Group
recognises the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Group also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary
shareholders. NZF Money Limited has complied with all Trustee imposed capital requirements throughout the two years ended
31 March 2010 and the six month period ended 30 September 2010 and there has been no material change in the Group’s
approach to capital management during the period.

24 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURE

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Geographical Concentration of Loans and Advances

GROUP

Residential Property
Auckland

Bay of Plenty
Canterbury
Gisborne

Hawkes Bay

North Shore
Northland
Queenstown
Southland/Otago
South Island — Other
Taranaki/Manawatu/Wanganui
Waikato
Weilington/Kapiti

Other Loans
Auckland
Wellington

Total

30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited Unaudited Unaudited
% $'000 % $'000 % $'000
46.64 114,942 49.70 130,136 52.21 138,229
3.55 8,750 3.44 8,999 3.32 8,776
5.81 14,323 5.59 14,645 4.83 12,794
0.59 1,451 0.50 1,314 0.53 1,408
1.95 4,818 2.09 5,478 2.16 5,722
8.58 21,157 9.10 23,856 9.71 25,725
3.69 9,084 3.59 9,395 471 12,456
1.46 3,603 1.07 2,811 1.14 3,018
1.48 3,644 1.31 3,426 1.12 2,959
2.69 6,626 2.36 6,182 2.75 7,273
2.71 6,681 2.62 6,859 1.95 5,149
6.75 16,639 6.18 16,199 5.90 15,610
12.43 30,632 11.20 29,352 8.43 22,302
98.33 242,350 98.75 258,652 98.76 261,421
0.45 1,107 0.10 293 0.10 281
1.22 3,002 1.15 3,016 1.14 3,006
1.67 4,109 1.25 3,309 1.24 3,287
100.00 246,459 100.00 261,961 100.00 264,708
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24 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURE (CONTINUED)

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Collateral held over Loans and Advances

GROUP 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited Unaudited Unaudited
% $'000 % $'000 % $'000
First Mortgages 97.66 240,693 98.08 256,916 97.50 258,074
Second Mortgages 0.67 1,657 0.65 1,711 1.26 3,347
GSA and Other Security 1.67 4,109 1.27 3,334 1.24 3,287
Total 100.00 246,459 100.00 261,961 100.00 264,708
Geographical Concentration of Loans and Advances
COMPANY 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
% $'000 % $'000 % $'000
Residential Property
Auckland 62.74 25,469 67.42 41,428 68.86 54,664
Bay of Plenty - - 0.92 565 0.93 736
Canterbury - - 0.55 335 0.42 332
Hawkes Bay 0.05 19 0.88 542 0.68 537
North Shore 0.39 159 1.15 708 5.81 4,611
Northland 0.95 384 3.58 2,201 7.05 5,594
Queenstown 7.69 3,123 4.57 2,811 3.80 3,018
Southland/Otago 0.29 119 0.57 348 0.44 349
Taranaki/Manawatu/Wanganui - - 0.24 149 0.18 144
Waikato 1.01 409 2.70 1,660 2.49 1,974
Wellington/Kapiti 16.76 6,805 12.04 7,399 5.20 4,126
89.88 36,487 94.62 58,146 95.86 76,085
Other Loans
Auckland 2.74 1,107 0.48 293 0.35 281
Wellington 7.38 3,002 4.90 3,016 3.79 3,006
10.12 4,109 5.38 3,309 4.14 3,287
Total 100.00 40,596 100.00 61,455 100.00 79,372
Collateral held over Loans and Advances
COMPANY 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
% $'000 % $'000 % $'000
First Mortgages 85.80 34,830 91.79 56,410 91.64 72,738
Second Mortgages 4.08 1,657 2.78 1,711 4.22 3,347
GSA and Other Security 10.12 4,109 5.43 3,334 4.14 3,287
Total 100.00 40,596 100.00 61,455 100.00 79,372
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24 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURE (CONTINUED)
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Concentration of Loans and Advances to Individual Counterparties

Group
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009

Unaudited Audited Unaudited
Number of Counterparties

% of Shareholder Funds

Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009

Audited Audited Audited
Number of Counterparties

10 - 19.99% 9 12 15 8 11 16
20 - 29.99% 3 3 4 3 4 5
30 -39.99% - - - 2 - -
Total 12 15 19 13 15 21
Managed Funds, Custodial and Other Fiduciary Activities
The Group has not had any involvement in funds management and/or custodial activities.
FUNDING - LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Product Concentration of Funding
GROUP 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
: 2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited Unaudited Unaudited
% $'000 % $'000 % $'000
Term loans 45.54 105,790 75.86 193,700 75.72 191,250
Secured notes 40.18 93,345 - - - -
Secured subordinated notes 1.49 3,460 1.36 3,460 1.37 3,460
Secured debenture stock 12.79 29,711 22.78 58,186 22.91 57,874
100.00 232,306 100.00 255,346 100.00 252,584
COMPANY 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
% $'000 % $'000 % $'000
Term loans - - - - 14.73 10,000
Secured debenture stock 100.00 29,711 100.00 58,186 85.27 57,874
100.00 29,711 100.00 58,186 100.00 67,874
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24 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURE (CONTINUED)

FUNDING - LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Geographical Concentration of Funding

GROUP

New Zealand
United Kingdom
Australia

France

China

Hong Kong
United Arab Emirates
Germany

USA

Japan
Netherlands
Switzerland
Romania

Ireland

Thailand

Taiwan

Korea

COMPANY

New Zealand
United Kingdom
Australia

France

China

Hong Kong
United Arab Emirates
Germany

USA

Japan
Netherlands
Switzerland
Romania

Ireland

Thailand
Taiwan

Korea

30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited Unaudited Unaudited
% $'000 % $'000 % $'000
98.55 228,984 98.99 252,769 99.66 251,720
0.56 1,301 0.18 457 0.07 166
0.42 969 0.43 1,120 0.04 101
0.16 369 0.12 333 0.12 308
0.10 239 0.06 161 - -
0.04 95 0.08 212 - -
0.03 76 - - - -
0.02 55 0.01 25 0.01 35
0.02 53 0.06 151 0.07 185
0.02 42 0.02 40 - -
0.02 40 0.01 30 0.01 30
0.02 37 0.01 23 0.01 22
0.01 20 - - - -
0.01 11 0.01 11 0.01 11
0.01 8 - - - -
0.01 7 0.01 7 - 6

- - 0.01 7 - -
100.00 232,306 100.00 255,346 100.00 252,584
30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
% $'000 % $'000 % $'000
88.82 26,389 95.58 55,609 98.74 67,010
4.38 1,301 0.79 457 0.24 166
3.26 969 1.92 1,120 0.15 101
1.24 369 0.57 333 0.45 308
0.80 239 0.28 161 - -
0.32 95 0.36 212 - -
0.26 76 - - - -
0.19 55 0.04 25 0.05 35
0.18 53 0.26 151 0.27 185
0.14 42 0.07 40 - -
0.13 40 0.05 30 0.04 30
0.12 37 0.04 23 0.03 22
0.07 20 - - - -
0.04 11 0.02 11 0.02 11
0.03 8 - - - -
0.02 7 0.01 7 0.01 6

- - 0.01 7 - -
100.00 29,711 100.00 58,186 100.00 67,874

There is no material concentration of funding within New Zealand.
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(a) Interest rate risk

The following tables summarise the Group’s interest rate gap position on the basis of net discounted cash flows:

GROUP 30 September 2010
Unaudited
Weighted Current Non-Current Total
average 0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+
effective Months Months Years Years Years
interest rate $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
%
Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:
Cash and cash equivalents 2.75 2,864 - - - - 2,864
Loans and advances to customers 7.88 36,891 842 108 402 206,115 244,358
Trade and other receivables - 746 - - - - 746
40,501 842 108 402 206,115 247,968
Derivative:
Derivative assets held for risk management - - - - - - -
40,501 842 108 402 206,115 247,968
Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:
Trade and other payables - 1,819 - - - - 1,819
Term loans 4.02 - - 105,790 - - 105,790
Secured notes 4.97 - - - - 93,345 93,345
Secured subordinated notes 4.76 - - 3,460 - - 3,460
Secured debenture stock 8.09 14,873 10,057 4,011 770 - 29,711
16,692 10,057 113,261 770 93,345 234,125
Derivative:
Derivative liabilities held for risk
management - 144 239 825 233 - 1,441
16,836 10,296 114,086 1,003 93,345 235,566

As disclosed in Note 20, the Group’s term loan facility with Westpac Banking Corporation is due for repayment on 18 October
2011. As is usual practice, this facility will be renegotiated in the ordinary course of business.
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

GROUP

Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to customers
Trade and other receivables

Derivative:

Derivative assets held for risk management

Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:

Trade and other payables
Term loans

Secured subordinated notes
Secured debenture stock

Derivative:
Derivative liabilities held for risk
management

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate
%

2.75
7.84

3.28
5.84
7.77

31 March 2010

Audited

Current Non-Current Total

0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+

Months Months Years Years Years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
12,509 - - - - 12,509
48,915 8 49 62 210,172 259,206
833 - - - - 833
62,257 8 49 62 210,172 272,548
- - 1 46 - 47
62,257 8 50 108 210,172 272,595
2,513 - - - - 2,513
- 193,700 - - - 193,700
- 3,460 - - - 3,460
35,007 12,691 9,125 1,363 - 58,186
37,520 209,851 9,125 1,363 - 257,859
183 383 227 759 - 1,552
37,703 210,234 9,352 2,122 - 259,411
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

GROUP 30 September 2009
Unaudited
Weighted Current Non-Current Total
average 0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+
effective Months Months Years Years Years
interest rate $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
%
Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:
Cash and cash equivalents 3.25 5,370 - - - - 5,370
Loans and advances to customers 8.43 59,601 5,721 290 48 195,896 261,556
Trade and other receivables - 910 - - - - 910
65,881 5,721 290 48 195,896 267,836
Derivative:
Derivative assets held for risk management - - - - - - -
65,881 5,721 290 48 195,896 267,836
Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:
Trade and other payables - 1,168 - - - - 1,168
Term loans 3.50 10,000 - 181,250 - - 191,250
Secured subordinated notes 3.75 - - 3,460 - - 3,460
Secured debenture stock 7.98 17,494 27,030 12,144 1,206 - 57,874
28,662 27,030 196,854 1,206 - 253,752
Derivative:
Derivative liabilities held for risk
management - 378 559 670 787 - 2,394
29,040 27,589 197,524 1,993 - 256,146
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

COMPANY

Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advances to customers
Trade and other receivables

Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:

Trade and other payables
Secured debenture stock

COMPANY

Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advances to customers
Trade and other receivables

Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:

Trade and other payables
Secured debenture stock

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

2.75
9.27

8.09

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

2.75
8.68

7.77

30 September 2010
Audited

Current Non-Current Total

0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+

Months Months Years Years Years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,178 - - - - 1,178
36,889 836 28 35 707 38,495
1,061 - - - - 1,061
39,128 836 28 35 707 40,734
480 - - - - 480
14,873 10,057 4,011 770 - 29,711
15,353 10,057 4,011 770 - 30,191

31 March 2010
Audited

Current Non-Current Total

0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+

Months Months Years Years Years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
12,133 - - - - 12,133
48,380 2 41 49 10,228 58,700
240 - - - - 240
60,753 2 41 49 10,228 71,073
559 - - - - 559
35,007 12,691 9,125 1,363 - 58,186
35,566 12,691 9,125 1,363 - 58,745
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

COMPANY

Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advances to customers
Trade and other receivables

Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:

Trade and other payables
Term loans

Secured debenture stock

Derivative:
Derivative liabilities held for risk
management

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

3.25
9.84

3.84
7.98

30 September 2009
Audited

Current Non-Current Total

0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+

Months Months Years Years Years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
4,512 - - - - 4,512
59,601 5,185 270 32 11,132 76,220
380 - - - - 380
64,493 5,185 270 32 11,132 81,112
644 - - - - 644
10,000 - - - - 10,000
17,494 27,030 12,144 1,206 - 57,874
28,138 27,030 12,144 1,206 - 68,518
12 51 111 51 - 225
28,150 27,081 12,255 1,257 - 68,743
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Residual contractual maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities
The following tables show the gross undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis

of their earliest possible contractual maturity and their expected maturity. The Gross nominal inflow/(outflow) disclosed in the
following tables is the contractual, undiscounted cash flow of the financial asset or financial liability.

GROUP 30 September 2010
Unaudited
Gross
Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/ Carrying
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow) Amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,864 - - - - 2,864 2,864
Loans and advances to customers 48,221 9,836 18,028 53,693 242,123 371,901 244,358
Trade and other receivables 746 - - - - 746 746
51,831 9,836 18,028 53,693 242,123 375,511 247,968
Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:
Trade and other payables (1,819) - - - - (1,819) (1,819)
Term loans (2,126) (2,126) (106,000) - - (110,252) (105,790)
Secured notes 2,320) (2,320) (4,640) (13,920) (107,265) (130,465) (93,345)
Secured subordinated notes (83) 83) (3,468) - - (3,634) (3,460)
Secured debenture stock (15,539) (10,552) (4,325) (843) - (31,259)  (29,711)

(21,887)  (15,081) (118,433) (14,763) (107,265) (277,429) (234,125)

Derivative:
Derivative liabilities held for risk

management (144) (239) (825) (233) - (1,441)  (1,441)

(22,031)  (15,320) (119,258) (14,996) (107,265) (278,870) (235,566)

Total 29,800 (5,484) (101,230) 38,697 134,858 96,641 12,402

The expected maturity of financial assets and financial liabilities differs materially from the contractual maturity in respect of
loans and advances for the Group as at 30 September 2010. The expected maturity of loans and advances and the adjusted
contractual cash flows are as follows:

GROUP 30 September 2010
Unaudited
Gross
Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow)

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Loans and advances to customers
(expected) 46,149 9,836 18,028 53,693 242,123 369,829

Adjusted Total 27,728 (5,484) (101,230) 38,697 134,358 94,569

As disclosed in Note 20, the Group’s term loan facility with Westpac Banking Corporation is due for repayment on 18 October
2011. As is usual practice, this facility will be renegotiated in the ordinary course of business.
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Residual contractual maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

GROUP

31 March 2010

Audited
Gross
Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/ Carrying
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow) Amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:
Cash and cash equivalents 12,509 - - - - 12,509 12,509
Loans and advances to customers 61,318 8,914 17,855 53,450 250,378 391,915 259,206
Trade and other receivables 833 - - - - 833 833
74,660 8,914 17,855 53,450 250,378 405,257 272,548
Derivative:
Derivative assets held for risk management - - 1 46 - 47 47
74,660 8,914 17,856 53,496 250,378 405,304 272,595
Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:
Trade and other payables (2,513) - - - - (2,513) (2,513)
Term loans (3,177)  (194,022) - - - (197,199) (193,700)
Secured subordinated notes (101) (3.470) - - - (3,571) (3,460)
Secured debenture stock (36,631) (13,359) (9,654) (1,489) - (61,133) (58,186)
(42,422) (210,851) (9,654) (1,489) - (264,416) (257,859)
Derivative:
Derivative liabilities held for risk
management (183) (383) (227) (759) - (1,552) (1,552)
(42,605) (211,234) (9,881) (2,248) - (265,968) (259,411)
Total 32,055 (202,320) 7,975 51,248 250,378 139,336 13,184

The expected maturity of financial assets and financial liabilities differs materially from the contractual maturity in respect of
loans and advances for the Group as at 31 March 2010. The expected maturity of loans and advances and the adjusted

contractual cash flows are as follows:

GROUP

31 March 2010

Audited
Gross
Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Loans and advances to customers
(expected) 59,083 8,914 17,855 53,450 250,378 389,680
Adjusted Total 29,820 (202,320) 7,975 51,248 250,378 137,101
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Residual contractual maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

GROUP

Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advances to customers -

Trade and other receivables

Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:

Trade and other payables
Term loans

Secured subordinated notes
Secured debenture stock

Derivative:
Derivative liabilities held for risk

Total

30 September 2009
Unaudited

Gross

Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/ Carrying
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow) Amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
5,370 - - - - 5,370 5,370
72,154 14,196 17,542 51,621 233,589 389,102 261,556
910 - - - - 910 910
78,434 14,196 17,542 51,621 233,589 395,382 267,836
(1,168) - - - - (1,168) (1,168)
(13,230) (3,154) (181,561) - - (197,945) (191,250)
(65) 65) (3,466) - - (3,596) (3,460)
(19,071)  (28,396)  (12,947) (1,308) - (61,722)  (57,874)
(33,534) (31,615 (197,974) (1,308) - (264,431) (253,752)
(378) (559) (670) (787) - (239) (2,394)
(33,912)  (32,174) (198,644) (2,095) - (266,825) (256,146)
44,522  (17,978) (181,102) 49,526 233,589 128,557 11,690

The expected maturity of financial assets and financial liabilities differs materially from the contractual maturity in respect of
loans and advances for the Group as at 30 September 2009. The expected maturity of loans and advances and the adjusted

contractual cash flows are as follows:

GROUP

Loans and advances to customers
(expected)

Adjusted Total

30 September 2009
Unaudited
Gross
Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/
Meonths Months Years Years Years (Outflow)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
69,403 14,261 \ 17,542 51,621 233,589 386,416
41,771 (17,913) (181,102) 49,526 233,589 125,871
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Residual contractual maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

COMPANY

Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to customers
Trade and other receivables

Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:

Trade and other payables
Secured debenture stock

Total

30 September 2010
Audited

Gross

Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/ Carrying
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow) Amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,178 - - - - 1,178 1,178
39,260 879 114 286 851 41,390 38,495
197 36 72 972 - 1,277 1,061
40,635 915 186 1,258 851 43,845 40,734
(480) - - - - (480) (480)
(15,539)  (10,552) (4,325) (843) - (31,259)  (29,711)
(16,019)  (10,552) (4,325) (843) - (31,739) (30,191
24,616 (9,637) (4,139) 415 851 12,106 10,543

The expected maturity of financial assets and financial liabilities differs materially from the contractual maturity in respect of
loans and advances for the Company as at 30 September 2010. The expected maturity of loans and advances and the adjusted

contractual cash flows are as follows:

COMPANY

Loans and advances to customers
(expected)

Adjusted Total

30 September 2010
Audited

Gross
Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
37,188 879 114 286 851 39,318
22,544 (9,637) (4,139) 415 851 10,034
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Residual contractual maturities of financia! assets and financial liabilities (continued)

COMPANY

Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advances to customers
Trade and other receivables

Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:

Trade and other payables
Secured debenture stock

Total

31 March 2010

Audited

Gross

Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/ Carrying
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow) Amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
12,133 - - - - 12,133 12,133
52,381 531 1,097 3,202 12,932 70,143 58,700
240 - - - - 240 240
64,754 531 1,097 3,202 12,932 82,516 71,073
(559) - - - - (559) (559)
(36,631)  (13,359) (9,654) (1,489) - (61,133)  (58,186)
(37,190)  (13,359) (9,654) (1,489) - (61,692) (58,745
27,564  (12,828) (8,557) 1,713 12,932 20,824 12,328

The expected maturity of financial assets and financial liabilities differs materially from the contractual maturity in respect of
loans and advances for the Company as at 31 March 2010. The expected maturity of loans and advances and the adjusted

contractual cash flows are as follows:

COMPANY

Loans and advances to customers
(expected)

Adjusted Total

31 March 2010

Audited
Gross
Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
50,146 531 1,097 3,202 12,932 67,908
25,329  (12,828) (8,557) 1,713 12,932 18,589
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25 MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Residual contractual maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

COMPANY

Financial Assets
Non-Derivative:

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advances to customers
Trade and other receivables

Financial Liabilities
Non-Derivative:

Trade and other payables
Term loans
Secured debenture stock

Derivative:
Derivative liabilities held for risk
management

Total

30 September 2009
Audited

Gross

Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/ Carrying
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow) Amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
4,512 - - - - 4,512 4,512
64,120 6,174 1,553 3,706 14,100 89,653 76,220
380 - - - - 380 380
69,012 6,174 1,553 3,706 14,100 94,545 81,112
(644) - - - - (644) (644)
(10,077) - - - - (10,077)  (10,000)
(19,071  (28,396)  (12,947) (1,308) - (61,722)  (57,874)
(29,792)  (28,396)  (12,947) (1,308) - (72,443)  (68,518)
(12) (51) (11D (51) - (225) (225)
(29,804)  (28,447) (13,058) (1,359) - (72,668)  (68,743)
39,208  (22,273)  (11,505) 2,347 14,100 21,877 12,369

The expected maturity of financial assets and financial liabilities differs materially from the contractual maturity in respect of
loans and advances for the Company as at 30 September 2009. The expected maturity of loans and advances and the adjusted

contractual cash flows are as follows:

COMPANY

Loans and advances to customers
{expected)

Adjusted Total

30 September 2009
Audited

Gross
Nominal
0-6 7-12 1-2 2-5 5+ Inflow/
Months Months Years Years Years (Outflow)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
61,369 6,239 1,553 3,706 14,100 86,967
36,457  (22,208)  (11,505) 2,347 14,100 19,191
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26 ASSET QUALITY

a) Summary of Lending

Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Neither past due nor impaired 224,865 238,986 225,306 33,600 45,149 54,882
Past due but not impaired 17,286 11,348 24,173 2,688 4,679 9,261
Impaired 4,308 11,627 15,229 4,308 11,627 15,229
Gross loans and advances 246,459 261,961 264,708 40,596 61,455 79,372
Less: Impaired loan allowance (2,101) (2,755) (3,152) (2,101) (2,755) (3,152)
Net loans and advances 244,358 259,206 261,556 38,495 58,700 76,220

The Group closely monitors the performance of its borrowers and the payment of instalments under its loans. The Board has
adopted a formal debt management process to be followed when a loan falls into arrears, which includes specified time driven
debt collection procedures, although management may take such actions earlier as circumstances require. Special monitoring of

assets occurs when there is a risk of the asset becoming impaired and active management is required to maintain the debt.

b) Loans and Advances Past Due But Not Impaired

Group Company

30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Past Due Assets Not Impaired
Opening balance 11,348 24,624 24,624 4,679 3,185 3,185
Collected during the period (8,467) (20,296) (15,494) (4,393) (3,096) (584)
Reclassified as Impaired assets - (144) (72) - (39 39)
Additions to Past Due asset status 14,405 7,164 15,115 2,402 4,629 6,699
Closing balance 17,286 11,348 24,173 2,688 4,679 9,261
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26 ASSET QUALITY (CONTINUED)

b) Loans and Advances Past Due But Not Impaired (continued)

GROUP

Analysis of Past Due Assets Not
Impaired:

0 - 31 Days

32 - 60 Days

61 - 90 Days

90+ Days

Total Past Due Assets Not
Impaired

Security Value of Past Due Assets
LVR

Past Due Assets Underwritten by
Third Party Insurers

Past Due Assets Not Reinsured

Security Value of Past Due Assets
Not Reinsured

LVR

30 September 2010 31 March 2010
Unaudited Audited

Total Instalment Balance Total Instalment Balance

Arrears of Loan Arrears of Loan

Principal Principal

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

13,201 87 13,114 4,925 27 4,898

2,017 27 1,990 1,645 20 1,625

1,548 32 1,516 286 8 278

520 21 499 4,492 330 4,162

17,286 167 17,119 11,348 385 10,963
32,477 16,078
53% 71%
10,959 6,780
6,327 4,568
12,199 6,823
52% 67%
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26 ASSET QUALITY (CONTINUED)

b) Loans and Advances Past Due But Not Impaired (continued)

GROUP 30 September 2009
Unaudited
Total Instalment Balance
Arrears of Loan
Principal
$'000 $'000 $'000
Analysis of Past Due Assets Not
Impaired:
0 - 31 Days 16,368 78 16,290
32 - 60 Days 1,963 32 1,931
61 - 90 Days 1,332 47 1,285
90+ Days 4,510 222 4,288
Total Past Due Assets Not
Impaired 24,173 379 23,794
Security Value of Past Due Assets 37,617
LVR 64%

Past Due Assets Underwritten by

Third Party Insurers 11,449
Past Due Assets Not Reinsured 12,724

Security Value of Past Due Assets

Not Reinsured 21,682
LVR 59%
COMPANY 30 September 2010 31 March 2010
Audited Audited
Total Instalment Balance Total Instalment Balance
Arrears of Loan Arrears of Loan
Principal Principal
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Analysis of Past Due Assets Not
Impaired:
0 - 31 Days 2,168 29 2,139 645 5 640
32 - 60 Days - - - 383 6 377
61 - 90 Days - - - 286 8 278
90+ Days 520 21 499 3,365 270 3,095
Total Past Due Assets Not
Impaired 2,688 50 2,638 4,679 289 4,390
Security Value of Past Due Assets 6,359 6,670
LVR 42% 70%
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26 ASSET QUALITY (CONTINUED)

b) Loans and Advances Past Due But Not Impaired (continued)

COMPANY 30 September 2009
Audited
Total Instalment Balance
Arrears of Loan
Principal
$'000 5'000 $'000
Analysis of Past Due Assets Not
Impaired:
0 - 31 Days 4,962 15 4,947
32 - 60 Days 91 2 89
61 - 90 Days 759 35 724
90+ Days 3,449 159 3,290
Total Past Due Assets Not
Impaired 9,261 211 9,050
Security Value of Past Due Assets 16,160
LVR 57%

Past Due Assets Not Impaired represent Loans and Advances to Customers where contractual interest or principal payments are
past due but the Group believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security/collateral available and/or
the stage of collection of amounts owed to the Group.

¢) Impaired Assets
At 30 September 2010, there were no restructured assets, real estate assets or other assets acquired through the enforcement of

security (31 March 2010 and 30 September 2009: $nil). The breakdown of the gross amount of other individuaily impaired
loans and advances and individual impairment allowances is as follows:

Group Company
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Total Gross Impaired Assets

Opening balance 11,627 16,511 16,511 11,627 16,511 16,511
Net (deletions)/additions (386) 386 72 (403) 281 39
Loan repayments received (4,740) (4,736) (1,282) (4,740) (4,736) (1,282)
Amounts written off (2,193) (534) (72) (2,176) 429) (39)
Closing balance 4,308 11,627 15,229 4,308 11,627 15,229
Individual Allowance for Impairment (1,719) (2,264) (2,595) (1,719) (2,264) (2,595)
Total Net Impaired Assets 2,589 9,363 12,634 2,589 9,363 12,634

Collateral held over Impaired Loans and Advances
First Mortgages 4,308 11,627 15,229 4,308 11,627 15,229
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 30 September 2010, the Company had non-cancellable operating lease commitments in respect of property, equipment and
vehicles, the total future minimum payments of which were payable as follows:

COMPANY ONLY 30 September 2010 31 March 2010

Total Property & Motor Total Property & Motor
Eqguipment Vehicles Equipment Vehicles
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Less than one year 75 27 43 79 52 27
Between one and five years 38 - 38 13 - 13
113 27 86 92 52 40

COMPANY ONLY 30 September 2009
Total Property & Motor

Equipment Vehicles
Audited Audited Audited

$'000 $'000 $'000

Less than one year 97 62 35
Between one and five years 45 21 24
142 83 59

There are no onerous terms concerning renewal of the above leases and the Company does not sublet any of the leased assets.
28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

On 26 June 2008, NZF Money Limited entered into a Software Licence and Maintenance Agreement with Ultradata Australia
Pty Limited for the procurement of a new IT operating platform. Under the terms of the agreement, the Licence Fee
commitment amounts to $400,000, which is payable in various stages up to and including the Go Live date, with annual
Maintenance Fees then payable, representing 20% of the Licence Fee amount. Total implementation costs are estimated to be in
the region of $1,500,000; $844,000 of which had been incurred as at 30 September 2010 (31 March 2010: $844,000; 30
September 2009: $825,000). On 1 December 2010, the intellectual property, together with all costs incurred to date in
connection with developing the new IT operating platform, were transferred at carrying value to NZF Homeloans Limited, as
the Board of Directors considered that the project now had more scope to add value and help with expansion of the Group’s
Home Loans business.

There were no other material capital commitments at 30 September 2010 (31 March 2010 and 30 September 2009: $nil).
29 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

There were no contingent assets or liabilities at 30 September 2010 (31 March 2010 and 30 September 2009: $nil).
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

GROUP

Entity
Call Account Deposit
NZF Group Limited

Related Party Loans
NZF Group Limited

New Zealand Mortgage

Secured Subordinated Notes
NZF Group Limited

Secured Debenture Stock
Pat Redpath O'Connor

COMPANY

Entity

Call Account Deposit
NZF Group Limited

Secured Subordinated Notes
NZF Mortgages Warehouse A

Related Party Loans
NZF Mortgages Warehouse A

New Zealand Mortgage

Secured Debenture Stock
Pat Redpath O'Connor

Interest Received/(Paid) & Asset/(Liability)
Weighted Average Interest Rate
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Unaudited Audited Unaudited
Relationship $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Parent Undertaking - (78) (78) - - -
- 4.50% 4.50%
Parent Undertaking (28) (51) - (605) (1,400) (7)
3.75% 3.75% -
Fellow Subsidiary - - - - - 4
Parent Undertaking 81 (144) (61) (3,460) (3,460) (3,460)
4.76% 5.84% 3.75%
Non-Executive (62) 99) (58) (1,800) (1,800) (1,800)
7.07% 6.65% 6.42%
Interest Received/(Paid) & Asset/(Liability)
Weighted Average Interest Rate
30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep 30-Sep 31-Mar 30-Sep
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009
(6 Months) (12 Months) (6 Months)
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Relationship $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Parent Undertaking - (78) (78) - - -
- 4.50% 4.50%
Controlled Trust - - - 900 - -
8.00% - -
Controlled Trust - - - - - 5
Feliow Subsidiary - - - - - 4
Non-Executive (62) (99) (58) (1,800) (1,800) (1,800)
7.07% 6.65% 6.42%
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

In addition to the above, the Group also paid brokerage fees of $48,000 (31 March 2010: $101,000; 30 September 2009:
$47,000) to New Zealand Mortgage Finance Limited and charged cost sharing fees of $36,000 (31 March 2010: $72,000; 30
September 2009: $36,000) to Finance Direct Limited to cover the cost of shared services and central administration costs. Both
New Zealand Mortgage Finance Limited and Finance Direct Limited are fellow subsidiary undertakings of NZF Group Limited,
the Company’s ultimate parent undertaking.

All of the above balances are unsecured and repayable on demand, except for the Secured Debenture Stock of $1,800,000 (31
March 2010: $1,800,000; 30 September 2009: $1,800,000) and the Secured Subordinated Notes of $3,460,000 (31 March 2010:
$3,460,000; 30 September 2009: $3,460,000). The Secured Debenture Stock is secured against the assets and undertakings of
NZF Money Limited and is scheduled for repayment as follows: $400,000 on 25 January 2011, $400,000 on 31 January 2011
and $1,000,000 on 21 March 2011. The Secured Subordinated Notes are secured against the assets and undertakings of NZF
Mortgages Warehouse A Trust and are repayable at the earlier to occur of the date of termination of the Warehouse Facility
Agreement or the Vesting Date or such other date as agreed between the Warehouse Facility Provider, NZF Homeloans Limited
as Trust Manager, and The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited as Trustee.

No amounts owed by related parties have been written off or forgiven during the six month period ended 30 September 2010
(31 March 2010 and 30 September 2009: $nil).

31 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 29 November 2010, the Company amended its Trust Deed in order to comply with the capital ratio, related party exposure
and liquidity requirements imposed by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 with effect from 1 December 2010. The
Trust Deed provides that the Company covenants with the Trustee that:

o ]t will not permit the Company’s capital ratio to be less than 8%;

¢ It will not permit the Company’s aggregate related party exposure ratio to exceed 15% of Capital; and

o The Company will manage its liquidity to ensure that, for each of the first three months of each monthly Liquidity Report,
the Company’s projected Liquidity Position is positive.

The Directors are not aware of any other matters or circumstances since the end of the reporting period, not otherwise dealt with

within this report or financial statements, that have significantly or may significantly affect the operations of NZF Money
Limited.
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